




































































































































Statement of Financial Position 
As at September 30, 2018 

September 30 September 30 September 30
2018       2017         2016          

                                                                                                                                     ................. Restated .................. 
ASSETS                                                                          Notes         ........................ (Rupees in '000) ........................
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 7 2,909,416 1,745,946 1,464,904 
Intangible asset 8 —   19 444 
Long term deposits 9 18,823 20,961 15,467 
Deferred cost 10 8,771 17,543 28,885 

2,937,010 1,784,469 1,509,700 
CURRENT ASSETS 
Stores, spare parts and loose tools 11 55,599 56,157 49,675 
Stock-in-trade 12 790,044 1,095,532 606,067 
Trade Debts 13 28,726 —   —   
Loans and advances 14 38,841 116,285 104,960 
Trade deposits & short term prepayments 15 12,413 11,608 14,740 
Other receivables 16 160,994 3,613 12,171 
Sales Tax Refundable —   —   3,606 
Income tax refundable - net of provision 38,155 —   733 
Cash and bank balances 17 7,071 19,721 123,255 

1,131,843 1,302,916 915,207 
TOTAL ASSETS    4,068,853    3,087,385    2,424,907 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES 
Authorized capital 
20,000,000 shares of Rs.10 each     200,000      200,000     200,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid up capital 18 119,460 119,460 119,460 
Unappropriated profit 111,367 74,487 347,806 
Surplus on revaluation of property, 
     plant & equipment 19 1,099,872 375,218 396,171 

1,330,699 569,165 863,437 
NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Long term financing 20 153,791 209,422 182,414 
Liabilities against assets subject 
     to finance lease 21 97,072 135,869 80,118 
Deferred liabilities 22 603,790 300,074 295,067 

854,653 645,365 557,599 
CURRENT LIABILITIES 
Trade and other payables 23 688,073 378,599 275,679 
Accrued finance cost 24 29,035 46,507 20,302 
Short term borrowings 25 1,021,483 1,293,557 644,680 
Unclaimed dividend 1,526 1,551 1,551 
Dividend payable 12,418 12,436 12,185 
Current portion of long term financing 20 87,936 87,000 22,000 
Current portion of liabilities against assets 
      subject to finance lease 21 43,030 37,310 27,474 
Provision for income tax - net  —   15,895 —   

1,883,501 1,872,855 1,003,871 
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 26 —   —   —   
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    4,068,853    3,087,385    2,424,907 
The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements 

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Profit or Loss 
For the year ended September 30, 2018

September 30 September 30 
  2018       2017        

                                                                                      Notes                   (Rupees in ‘000)

Sales 27 3,405,535 2,583,232 

Cost of sales 28 3,307,015 2,653,892 

Gross Profit / (Loss) 98,520 (70,660)

Profit from trading activities 29 3,553 —   

102,073 (70,660)

Distribution cost 30 41,879 796 

Administrative cost 31 90,971 84,937 

Other operating cost 32 7,812 11,622 

140,662 97,355 

Operating Loss (38,589) (168,015)

Other income 33 185,391 2,617 

146,802 (165,398)

Finance cost 34 121,934 94,280 

Profit / (Loss) before taxation 24,868 (259,678)

Taxation 35 5,442 27,426 

Profit / (Loss) after taxation 19,426 (287,104)

Earning / (Loss) per share 
     - Basic and diluted (Rupees) 36 1.63 (24.03)

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements 

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended September 30, 2018

September 30 September 30 
  2018       2017        

                                                                                      Notes                   (Rupees in ‘000)

Profit / (Loss) after taxation 19,426 (287,104)

Other Comprehensive Income 

Items that will not be reclassified to 
     statement of profit or loss 

Remeasurement loss on acturial valuation 
      of staff defined benefit plan 22.3.4 (4,261) —   

Related deferred tax 1,150 —   

(3,111) —   

Items that may be reclassified subsequently 
to statement of profit or loss 

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 
     equipment during the year 19 1,023,393 —   

Related deferred tax (290,549) —   

732,844 —   

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 749,159 (287,104)

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements 

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended September 30, 2018

September 30 September 30 
  2018       2017        

                                                                                      Notes                     (Rupees in ‘000)

Profit / (Loss) before taxation 24,868 (259,678)
Adjustment for non cash charges and other items:
Depreciation 7.1.2 87,031 62,613 
Amortization 8 19 425 
Amortization of deferred cost 10 8,772 11,342 
Employees retirement benefits expense 22.3.2 & 22.4.2 12,523 12,742 
Provision for slow moving items and obsolescence 11.1 750 945 
Impairment of further sales tax refundable 16.4 —   8,558 
Provision for market committee fee 22.2 7,121 6,253 
Gain on sale of Property, plant & equipment 7.1.3 (464) (583)
Finance cost 34 121,934 94,280 

237,686 196,575 
262,554 (63,103)

Changes in Working capital 
(Increase) / Decrease in current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools (192) (7,427)
Stock - in - trade 305,488 (489,465)
Trade debts (28,726) --   
Loans and advances 77,444 (11,325)
Trade deposits & Short term prepayments (805) 3,132 
Sales Tax refundable —   3,606 
Other receivables (157,381) --   

195,828 (501,479)
Increase in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 309,474 102,920 

767,856 (461,662)

Employees retirement benefits paid during the year 22.3.1 & 22.4.1 (2,655) (5,082)
Finance cost paid during the year (139,406) (68,074)
Decrease / (increase) in long term deposits 2,138 (5,494)
Income tax paid during the year (54,049) (19,704)

(193,972) (98,354)

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from operating activities 573,884 (560,016)
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September 30 September 30 
  2018       2017        

                                                                                      Notes                     (Rupees in ‘000)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sale of property, plant & equipment 7.1.3 605 683 

Additions to property, plant and equipment 7.1 & 7.2 (227,249) (343,756)

Net cash outflow from investing activities (226,644) (343,073)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of long term financing (71,274) (25,500)

Proceeds from long term financing 16,578 117,508 

Proceeds from liabilities against asset subject to finance lease —   91,908 

Payments of liabilities against asset subject to finance lease (33,077) (26,321)

Dividend paid during the year —   (7,168)

Increase / (decrease) in dividend payable during the year - net (43) 251 

Net cash (outlow) / inflow from financing activities (87,816) 150,678 

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 259,424 (752,411)

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (1,273,836) (521,425)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 37 (1,014,412) (1,273,836)

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements 

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended September 30, 2018

Issued,
Subscribed &

Paid-up Capital 

Unappropriated
profit 

Capital Reserve -
Surplus on revaluation

of property, plant &
equipment 

Total 

                                                             ........................................  (Rs in '000) ......................................... 

Balance as at October 01, 2016 
- as previously reported 119,460 347,806 —   467,266 

Impact of change in accounting 
policy - net of tax  

Revaluation surplus on property, 
plant and equipment —   — 396,171 396,171 

Balance as at October 01, 2016 
- as restated     119,460 347,806 396,171 863,437 

Transaction with Owners: 

Final Dividend for the year ended 
September 30, 2016 @ Rs. 0.6 per share — (7,168) — (7,168)

Total Comprehensive Loss for the year 
ended September 30, 2017 — (287,104) — (287,104)

Incremental depreciation charged on surplus 
on revaluation of property, plant & equipment 
- net of deferred tax — 20,953 (20,953) —
Balance as at September 30, 2017 

- as restated     119,460 74,487 375,218 569,165 

Balance as at September 30, 2017 
- as previously reported  119,460 74,487 — 193,947 

Impact of change in accounting 
policy - net of tax  
 Revaluation surplus on property, 

plant and equipment — — 375,218 375,218 
Balance as at October 01, 2017 

- as restated     119,460 74,487 375,218 569,165 
Total Comprehensive income for the year 
ended September 30, 2018 —   16,315 732,844 749,159 
Incremental depreciation charged 
on surplus on revaluation of property, 
plant & equipment - net of deferred tax — 20,565 (20,565) —
Effect of change in tax rate directly credited 
to revaluation surplus — — 12,375 12,375 
Balance as at September 30, 2018     119,460 111,367 1,099,872 1,330,699 

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements 

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended September 30, 2018

1 COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS
1.1 The Company is a public limited Company incorporated in 1986 in Pakistan and its shares are quoted

on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office of the Company is situated at C-27, Plot
No. F-24, Block - 9, Clifton, Karachi.

1.2 The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of sugar and sale of its by-products
i.e. molasses and bagasse. The Company has also installed bagasse fired transmission equipment to 
sell surplus electric power. The manufacturing facilities are located at Sanghar Sindhri Road, Deh
Kehore, District Sanghar in the province of Sindh. The total area of industry land / manufacturing
facilities which includes the main factory is spread over 320.625 Acres. 

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY'S
FINANCIAL POSITION AND PERFORMANCE

2.1 During the year, crushing capacity of sugar has been enhanced by adding new plant at an aggregate
cost of Rs. 891,475 thousand. Newly installed plant & machinery commenced production in the
month of March 2018. This plant has added in capacity and is expected to provide significant
economic benefits in future as well.

2.2 During the year, the Company carried out fresh revaluation of its property,plant and equipment which
has resulted in surplus of Rs.1,023,393 thousand. Further, due to changes in Companies Act, 2017
the presentation of revaluation surplus has been changed and is made part of equity of the Company.
This change has resulted in improved financial ratios.

2.3 During the year significant decline in sugar price locally and internationally due to surplus production
has affected the performance / profitability of the Company. Furthermore, the cost of sugar production 
decreased as compared to last year due to the fact that the cost of cane paid / booked were Rs.
160/40 k.g. on the basis of court order inspite of the fact the Government of Sindh fixed minimum
sugar cane price at Rs.182/40 k.g. against which the Company along with other sugar mills filed
petition as disclosed in note 26.1.4. However, the Government announced export subsidy during the
year which has compensated the significant decline in the sugar prices to some extent.

2.4 Due to first time application of financial reporting requirements under the Companies Act, 2017 (the
Act) including disclosure and presentation requirements of fourth schedule of the Act, some of the
amounts reported for the previous period have been reclassified as detailed in note 46 of these
financial statements.

3 BASIS OF PREPARATION 
3.1 Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan comprise of: 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International
Accounting Standard Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the
requirements of IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act,
2017 have been followed.
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3.2 Accounting Convention
These financial statements have been  prepared under the historical cost convention, except for,
employees retirement benefits that are based on actuarial valuation, items of property, plant and
equipment carried at revalued amounts and stock in trade when valued at net realizable value.

3.3 Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupee which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.

3.4 STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING STANDARD AND
INTERPRETATIONS

3.4.1 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that became effective during the year
The following Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting
standards became effective during the year. 

IAS-7 Statement of Cash Flows (Amendments)

IAS-12 Income Taxes (Amendments)

These Standards, interpretations and amendments as also communicated in the preceding year, do
not have significant impact on Company's financial statements except for some additional
disclosures. In addition to above, certain new cycle of improvements are applicable in current year,
that are either considered not to be relevant or are not expected to have significant impact to the
Company's financial statements and hence have not been specified.

3.4.2 Companies Act, 2017
During the year Companies Act, 2017 have become effective, which has brought certain additional
disclosure requirements and changes in presentation of certain items. Few disclosure requirements
of fourth schedule to the repealed Companies Ordinance 1984 have been deleted to remove
duplications and to make the disclosure in line with the requirements of IFRS. Therefore the Company 
has made certain additional disclosures, changes and reclassifications in order to comply with the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017. Further more the Companies Act 2017 has not carried
forward provisions related to accounting of revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment
accordingly the Company has now accounted for this revaluation surplus in accordance with the
requirements of IAS -16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” as disclosed in note 5.1.1 and note 6.

3.4.3 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are not yet effective.
The following standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting
standards that are effective for accounting periods, beginning on or after the date mentioned against
each of them. 

Effective for the period
IAS-12 Income Taxes – (Amendments) January 1, 2019

IAS-19 Employee Benefits - (Amendments) January 1, 2019

IAS-23 Borrowing Costs - (Amendments) January 1, 2019

IAS-28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures amendments January 1, 2018
resulting from Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle 
clarifying certain fair value measurements

IAS-40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment January 1, 2018
Property (Amendments)
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IFRS-2 Classification and Measurement of Share based Payments January 1, 2018
Transactions (Amendments)

IFRS-3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint January 1, 2018
Arrangements (Amendments)

IFRS-4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with January 1, 2018
IFRS 4  Insurance contracts – (Amendments)

IFRS-9 Financial Instruments July 1, 2018

IFRS-12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities amendments January 1, 2018
resulting from Annual Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle 
clarifying certain fair value measurements

IFRS-15 Revenue from Contract with customers January 1, 2019

IFRS-16 Leases January 1, 2019

IFRIC-22 Foreign Currency Transactions (Amendments) January 1, 2018

IFRIC-23 The Accounting for uncertainties in January 1, 2019
Income Taxes (Amendments)

These standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to or are not expected
to have significant impact on  the Company's financial statements other than certain additional
disclosures, if applicable in certain circumstances. 

In addition to above, certain new cycle of improvements will apply prospectively for period beginning
on or after 01, October 2018, and are either considered not to be relevant or are not expected to have
significant impact to the Company's financial statements and hence have not been specified. 

3.4.4 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards
that are not yet effective.

IASB Effective Date “Effective for
 the period beginning on or after
IFRS – 1 First Time Adoption of IFRS January 1, 2004

IFRS -14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts January 1, 2016

IFRS – 17 Insurance Contracts January 1, 2021

4 Critical accounting estimates, judgments and assumptions
The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards
requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affects the application 
of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under that circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
judgment about carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcome that
require material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and any future period affected.

Judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting standards that have
significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in
the next year are discussed in the following paragraphs of these note.

74



In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following estimates,
judgments and assumptions which are significant to the financial statements:

– Taxation :

In making the estimates of the income tax liabilities, the management considers current income 
tax law and decisions of appellate authorities. Deferred tax estimate is made considering future
applicable tax rate.

– Employees Retirement Benefit

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in these financial statements
for valuation of present value of defined benefit obligation. Any changes in these assumptions
in future years might effect gains and losses in those years. The actuarial valuation involves
making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. 

– Property, Plant and Equipment

The management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation charge for its
property, plant and equipment. The management reviews the value of assets for possible
impairment on financial year end. Any change in the estimate in the future years might effect
the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a
corresponding affect on the depreciation charge and impairment. 

– Stock in trade

The Company reviews the net realizable value of stock in trade to assess any diminution in the
respective carrying values. Net realizable value is determined with reference to the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost necessary to make the
sale.

– Contingencies

The assessment of the contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment
as the outcome of the future events cannot be predicted with certainty. The Company, based
on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value of contingent assets and
liabilities which may differ on the occurrence / non-occurrence of the uncertain future event(s).

– Impairment allowance against trade debts, deposits, advances and other receivables

The Company reviews the recoverability of its trade debts, advances and other receivables to
assess amount of doubtful debts and impairment allowance required there against periodically. 
While determining allowance, the Company considers financial health, market information,
aging of receivables, credit worthiness, credit rating, past records and business relationship.

– Slow Moving Stores and Obsolescence

In making estimates of quantum of slow moving items and obsolescence, the aging analysis,
current condition of various items and expected use in future are considered.

– Impairment

The Company reviews carrying amount of assets periodically to determine whether there is any 
indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, the assets recoverable amount is
estimated and impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss.
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5 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POILICIES
5.1  Property, plant and equipment
5.1.1 Operating Assets

Owned assets 
Recognition & Measurement

An items of property, plant & equipments is recognised as an asset if and only if the future economic
benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to the entity and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. These are subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any, except for free hold land, buildings and plant and machinery which are stated at
revalued amounts.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged, on a systematic basis over the economic useful life of the asset, on reducing
balance method, which reflects the pattern in which the assets economic benefits are consumed by
the Company, at the rates specified in respective note. Depreciation on additions is charged from the
month in which  the assets are put to use while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the
assets are disposed off. 

Revaluation Surplus - owned assets

Revaluation of freehold land and building on freehold land is carried out with sufficient regularity to
ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. Any
revaluation increase in the carrying amount of freehold land, factory and non-factory buildings on
freehold land and plant and machinery is recognized, net of tax, in other comprehensive income and
presented as a separate component of equity as “Revaluation surplus on property, plant and
equipment” except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease / deficit for the same asset
previously recognized in statement of profit or loss, in which case the increase is first recognized in
statement of profit or loss to the extent of the decrease previously charged. Any decreases that
reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to
the extent of the remaining surplus attributable to the asset, all other decreases are charged to
statement of profit or loss. The revaluation reserve is not available for distribution to the Company's
shareholders. Each year, the difference between depreciation based on the revalued carrying
amount of the asset charged to statement of profit or loss account and depreciation based on the
asset's original cost, net of tax, is reclassified from revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

During the year the Company changed its accounting policy in respect of the accounting and
presentation of revaluation of property, plant and equipment. Previously, the Company's accounting
policy was in accordance with the provisions of section 235 of the repealed Companies Ordinance
1984 which were not in alignment with the accounting treatment and presentation of revaluation of
property, plant and equipment as prescribed in IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment'. However, the
Companies Act, 2017 has not carried forward the said section, accordingly the Company has
changed the accounting policy to bring it in conformity with the accounting treatment and presentation 
of revaluation of property, plant and equipment as specified in IAS 16 'Property , plant and
equipment'. The detailed information and impact of this change in policy is provided in Note 6 to these
financial statements.

Subsequent Cost

Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to income as and when incurred. Major renewals and
improvements are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.
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Derecognition
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment  is derecognized on disposal; or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss arising from
the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in profit or loss when the
item is derecognized.

5.1.2 Assets subject to finance lease

These are accounted for by recording the assets at the lower of present value of minimum lease
payments under the lease agreements and the fair value of assets acquired. Depreciation is charged
to the statement of profit or loss using the same basis as for owned assets.

5.1.3 Capital work-in-progress

Capital  work-in-progress is stated  at cost accumulated up to the reporting date less impairment if any 
and represents expenditure incurred on property, plant and equipment in the course of construction /
installation / implementation / development including borrowing cost on eligible assets. These
expenditures are transferred to relevant category of property, plant and equipment as and when the
assets becomes available for use.

5.2 Intangible Asset

Computer software is stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Software cost are only capitalized 
when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the software will flow to the Company
and the same is amortized, on monthly proportionate basis applying the straight line method at the
rate stated in respective note to these financial statements.

5.3 Deferred Cost

Deferred cost is the cost / expense incurred whose benefits are expected to be obtained beyond the
period of one year. Deferred cost is being amortized over the estimated period of consuming benefits
which are five years.

5.4 Stores, spare parts and loose tools

These are valued at cost calculated on moving average basis less provision for obsolescence, and
slow moving items, except for the items in transit, which are valued at costs accumulated up to the
reporting date.

5.5 Stock in trade

Stock of sugar is valued at lower of the weighted average cost and net realizable value. By-products
i.e. Molasses and Baggasse are valued at net realizable value (NRV). Cost in relation to work in
process and finished goods consists of material cost, proportionate manufacturing overheads.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated cost necessary to be incurred to make the sale. 

5.6 Trade debts

Trade debts are carried at original invoice amount less impairment allowance, if any. Impairment
allowance for doubtful debts is based on management's assessment of customers and their credit
worthiness. Bad debts are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

5.7 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade  and other payables are carried at cost which  is the fair value  of the consideration
to be paid  in the future for goods  and services  received.
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5.8 Employees Retirement benefits:
5.8.1 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for all employees eligible to the scheme with
qualifying service period. Provision is made annually to cover the obligation on the basis of actuarial
valuation carried out using Projected Unit Credit Method, and is charged to statement of profit or loss,
related details of which are given in the respective note to the financial statements. Remeasurement
gains or losses are recognized in full as and when arise and are charged to other comprehensive
income.

5.8.2 Defined benefit plan - Leave Encashment

The Company provides for compensated absences for all eligible employees in the period in which
these are earned in accordance with the terms of employment. From the current year 2017-18 the
Company decides to use actuarial valuation to calculate the estimated liability for leave encashment
using Projected Unit Credit Method. Accordingly the liability has been determined by actuarial
valuation carried out by an independent valuer as on September 30, 2018. The charge for the year is
charged to statement of profit or loss, related details of which are given in the respective note to the
financial statements. Remeasurement gains or losses are recognized in full as and when arise and
are charged to statement of profit or loss.

Since the liability has been computed using actuarial valuation for the first time so there have arise an
immaterial difference of Rs. 625 thousand when compared to the liability booked earlier. Being the
immaterial amount the comparative figure have not been restated and the difference has been
adjusted in the current period. 

5.9 Finance Lease

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee or meet other criteria defined in IAS 17. All other leases
are classified as operating lease. Assets held under finance lease are recognized as items of
property, plant & equipment of the company at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the statement of financial position as “Liabilities against asset subject to finance lease”.
Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the liabilities against
assets subject to finance lease so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance
of the liability. Finance charges are charged to statement of profit or loss unless they are directly
attributable to qualifying assets in which case they are capitalized in accordance with the company's
general policy on borrowing cost.

5.10 Taxation
5.10.1 Current

The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rate of taxation (after taking
into account applicable tax credits, rebates and exemptions available, if any) or minimum tax and
alternate corporate tax under sections 113 & 113 (C) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001,
respectively whichever is higher. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where
considered necessary, to provision for taxation made in previous years arising from assessments
framed during the year for such years.
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5.10.2 Deferred
Deferred tax is recognized using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising
between the carrying  amount of assets and  liabilities in the financial statements and their tax base
and is recognized on the basis of the expected manner of the realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities using the tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting
date. Deferred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax asset is
reduced to the extent it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. 

5.10.3 Sales tax and Federal Excise Duty (FED)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net off amount of sales tax/FED except:

– Where amount incurred on a purchase of asset or service is not recoverable from the taxation
authorities, in which case the tax / duty is recognized as part of the cost of the acquisition of the
assets or as part of the expense item as applicable; and

– Receivables or payables that are stated with the amount of Sales tax / FED included. 

The net amount of sales tax and FED recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

5.11 Ijarah Lease contracts
Leases, where a significant portion of the risk and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor,
are classified as Ijarah lease. Payments made under the Ijarah lease agreements are charged to
statement of profit or loss.

5.12 Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the future economic benefits will flow to the 
Company and the revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, excluding discounts, rebates and government levies. 

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the
goods have passed to the buyer, usually on dispatch of the goods to customers.

Electric power supply is recognized when the supply of power is passed-on through transmission
lines.

Rental income is recorded on an accrual basis.

5.13 Foreign currency transaction and translation
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded into reporting currency at the rates of exchange
prevailing on the date of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are subsequently translated into reporting currency using year-end spot foreign exchange
rates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated using exchange rates that existed when the
values were determined. Exchange differences on foreign currency translations are included in the
statement of profit or loss.

5.14 Provisions and contingencies
Provisions  are recognized when  the Company has present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past event,  and  it is probable that outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and reliable estimates can be made. Where the outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is not probable, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is remote.
However, provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect current best
estimate.
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5.15 Borrowing cost
Mark-up,  interest  and  other  charges on borrowings are capitalized up to  the date  of commissioning
of the respective qualifying  assets. All other mark-up, interest,  profit and other charges are charged
to the statement of profit or loss.

5.16 Financial Instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument and derecognized when the Company loses control of
contractual rights that comprise the financial assets and in the case of financial liability when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss, if any, on
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is included in the statement of profit or loss
currently.

5.17 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
All financial assets and financial liabilities  are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of 
financial position if the Company has a legal enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and
intends either  to settle on net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities  simultaneously.

5.18 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost.  For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and bank balances net of short term borrowings.

5.19 Dividend and appropriation to reserves
Dividend and appropriation to reserve are recognized in the financial statements in the period in
which these are approved.

5.20 Impairment
Financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any objective
evidence that it is impaired. A financial  asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence
indicated that one or more events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of
that asset.

The company considers evidence of impairment for receivable and other financial assets at specific
asset level. Impairment losses are recognized as expense in the statement of profit or loss. An
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Non-Financial assets
The carrying amount of non-financial assets is assessed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the recoverable amount of
such assets is estimated. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and
value in use. An impairment loss is recognized as expense in the statement of profit or loss for the
amount by which asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

6 Change in Accounting Policy
Effective from 30 May 2017, the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act) was enacted which replaced and
repealed the previous Companies Ordinance, 1984 (the repealed Ordinance). Section 235 of the
repealed Ordinance relating to treatment of surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and
equipment as not been carried forward in the Act. The said section of the repealed Ordinance
specified the presentation and accounting treatment relating to the revaluation of property, plant and
equipment which was not in accordance with the requirement of IAS 16 ‘Property, Plant and
Equipment’ as applicable in Pakistan. Consequently, the Company changed its accounting policy for
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the revaluation of property, plant and equipment in accordance with the requirement of the
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017.
Previously, the Company’s accounting policy for revaluation of property, plant and equipment was in
accordance with the provision of Section 235 of the repealed Ordinance. Further, the revaluation
surplus on property, plant and equipment was shown as a separate item below equity, in accordance
with the presentation requirement of the repealed Ordinance. The accounting policy and presentation 
requirement relating to revaluation of property, plant and equipment have been changed to bring it in
conformity with the requirement of IAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment” as explained in note 5.1 to
these financial  statements. Further, the revaluation surplus on property; plant and equipment is now
presented in the statement of financial position and statement of changes in equity as a capital
reserve i.e. part of equity. 

In accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 ‘Accounting policies, estimates and errors’, the above
explained changes in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively, with the restatement
of the comparative information. As a result, a third statement of financial position as at the beginning
of the preceding period is presented (i.e. 1st October 2016). 

6.1 Statement of Financial Position
Retrospective impact of change in accounting policy

As at at 1 October 2016 - (Rupeess in 000) As at at 30 September 2017 - (Rupeess in 000)
As previously
reported on

30 September
2016

Adjustments

Increase/
(Decrease)

As restated 
on

1 October 2016

As previously
reported on

30 September
2017

Adjustments

Increase/
(Decrease)

As restated 
on

1 October 2017

Revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment (within equity)

— 396,171 396,171 — 375,218 375,218

Revaluation surplus on property,
plant and equipment (below equity) 396,171 (396,171) — 375,218 (375,218) —

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets Note - 7.1 2,894,416 1,063,540 

Capital work-in-progress Note - 7.2 15,000 682,406 

2,909,416 1,745,946 
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7.1 Operating Fixed Assets
OWNED LEASED OWNED &

LEASED  

Net carrying value as 
at September 30, 2018

Free hold
land

Factory
Building on

free hold land

Non-Factory
Building on

free hold land
Plant and
Machinery

Furniture
and Fittings Vehicles

Computer
Equipment & 
Appliances

Stores & Spares
held for capital

expenditure
Sub - Total Plant and

Machinery Grand Total

                                         .................................................................................. Rupees in’000 ...........................................................................................

Opening Net Book 
Value (NBV) 93,500 103,162 51,446 764,753 1,367 15,033 2,471 4,847 1,036,579 26,961 1,063,540 

Direct Additions at Cost —   —  —   —   162 2,648 370 —   3,180 —   3,180 

Surplus on Revaluation 21,500 18,473 9,762 973,658 —  —  —  —  1,023,393 —  1,023,393 

Transfer from Capital
Work in Progress —   125,719 —   603,848 —   —    —   —   729,567 161,908 891,475 
Disposal at NBV —   —  —   —   —   (141) —   —   (141) —   (141)

Depreciation charge for
the year —   (17,416) (5,145) (54,261) (140) (3,449) (308) (242) (80,961) (6,070) (87,031)

Closing Net Book Value 115,000 229,938 56,063 2,287,998 1,389 14,091 2,533 4,605 2,711,617 182,799 2,894,416 

Gross carrying value as
at September 30, 2018
Cost 7,043 155,669 12,365 1,378,400 6,669 34,319 12,430 5,867 1,612,762 191,908 1,804,670 
Accumulated Depreciation 
- Cost —   (27,044) (9,637) (321,991) (5,280) 

 
(20,228) (9,897) (1,262) (395,339) (9,109)  (404,448)

7,043 128,625 2,728 1,056,409 1,389 14,091 2,533 4,605 1,217,423 182,799 1,400,222 

Revaluation 107,957 177,127 83,380 1,352,160 —   —   —   —   1,720,624 —   1,720,624 
Accumulated Depreciation 
- Revaluation —   (75,814) (30,045) (120,571) —   —   —   —   (226,430) —   (226,430)

107,957 101,313 53,335 1,231,589 —   —   —   —   1,494,194 —   1,494,194 

Total Net  Book Value 115,000 229,938 56,063 2,287,998 1,389 14,091 2,533 4,605 2,711,617 182,799 2,894,416 

OWNED LEASED OWNED &
LEASED  

Net carrying value as 
at September 30, 2017

Free hold
land

Factory
Building on

free hold land

Non-Factory
Building on

free hold land
Plant and
Machinery

Furniture
and Fittings Vehicles

Computer
Equipment & 
Appliances

Stores & Spares
held for capital

expenditure
Sub - Total Plant and

Machinery Grand Total

                                         .................................................................................. Rupees in’000 ...........................................................................................

Opening Net Book 
Value (NBV) 93,500 111,821 57,162 771,263 1,519 15,452 2,645 5,102 1,058,466 62,104 1,120,570 

Direct Additions at Cost —   —  —   —   —   2,928 168 —   3,096 —   3,096 

Transfer from Leased
Assets —    —   —   32,459 —    —    —   —   32,459 (32,459) —   

Transfer from Capital
Work in Progress —   2,588 —   —   —   —    —   —   2,588 —   2,588 
Disposal at NBV —   —  —   —   —   (100) —   —   (100) —   (100)

Depreciation charge for
the year —   (11,247) (5,716) (38,969) (152) (3,248) (342) (255) (59,929) (2,684) (62,613) 

Closing Net Book Value 93,500 103,162 51,446 764,753 1,367 15,033 2,471 4,847 1,036,579 26,961 1,063,540 

Gross carrying value as
at September 30, 2017
Cost 7,043 29,950 12,365 774,552 6,507 32,521 12,060 5,867 880,865 30,000 910,865 
Accumulated Depreciation 
- Cost —    (19,009)  (9,296)  (281,716)  (5,140) (17,488)  (9,589)  (1,020) (343,258) (3,039) (346,297)

7,043 10,941 3,069 492,836 1,367 15,033 2,471 4,847 537,607 26,961 564,568 

Revaluation 86,457 158,654 73,618 378,502 —   —   —   —   697,231 —   697,231 
Accumulated Depreciation 
- Revaluation —    (66,433)  (25,241)  (106,585) —   —   —   —   (198,259) —   (198,259)

86,457 92,221 48,377 271,917 —   —   —   —   498,972 —   498,972 

Total Net  Book Value 93,500 103,162 51,446 764,753 1,367 15,033 2,471 4,847 1,036,579 26,961 1,063,540 

Depreciation rate % per
annum — 10 10 5 10 20 10 & 20 5 5 
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Sale
Proceeds

7.1.1 The Company's  freehold  land, building and plant and machinery were revalued on September 30, 2018,
by independent professional valuator M/s Joseph Lobo (Pvt) Limited at fair market value. The resultant
surplus on revaluation has been credited to the surplus on revaluation of property, plant & equipment.

7.1.2 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as under:

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

Cost of Sales Note 28 77,748 52,900 
Administrative Cost Note 31 9,283 9,713 

87,031 62,613 

7.1.3 The following Property, plant and equipments were sold during the year:

  Written   Gain    Mode
 Particulars Cost Down           on         of   Purchaser

Value    Sale      Sale 
                                                  .......................Rupees in '000.........................

Vehicle
        - Suzuki Cultus 850 141 605 464  Negotiation Mr. Nasir Mehmood

Reg. No. AUV 739 S/o Shoukat Ali,
(Note 33) Resident of Chak No. 1

Punjabi, P.O. Chak No. 3,
Khadwari, Taluka &
District Sanghar. 

September 30, 2018        850 141 605 464 

September 30, 2017    844 100 683 583  

7.2 Capital work-in-progress
Cost at

October 01 

Capital expenditure
incurred during 

the year

Transferred to
operating fixed

assets
Cost at

September 30

        .............................................. Rupees in ‘000 ......................................................

Plant and Machinery - under erection

Owned
Leased                          

Advances against Plant & Machinery
Civil works under construction
Borrowing cost related to plant and
machinery & Civil Works     Note 7.2.1
Stores held for capitalization

401,386 
161,908 

—   
91,021 

23,489 
4,602 

169,539 
—   

15,000 
22,011 

17,519 
—   

(570,925)
(161,908)

—   
(113,032)

(41,008)
(4,602)

—     
—     

15,000 
—    

—    
—    

As at September 30, 2018 682,406 224,069 (891,475) 15,000 

Plant and Machinery - under erection

Owned
Leased                          Note 21

Civil works under construction
Borrowing cost related to plant &
machinery and civil works      Note 7.2.1
Stores held for capitalization

213,230 
70,000 
58,720 

2,384 
—   

188,156 
91,908 
34,889 

21,105 
4,602 

—    
—   

2,588 

—   
—   

401,386 
161,908 
91,021 

23,489 
4,602 

As at September 30, 2017  344,334 340,660 2,588 682,406 

7.2.1 Effective rate of interest for capitalization of borrowing cost is 8.64% to 8.66% (2017: 8.47% to 8.70%)
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2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

8 INTANGIBLE ASSET
Computer Software
Net carrying value as at September 30

Opening net book value (NBV) 19 444 
Amortization charged during the year Note 8.1 & 31 (19) (425)
Closing Net Book Value —  19 

Gross carrying value as at September 30
Cost 1,275 1,275 
Accumulated Amortization (1,275) (1,256)

—   19 

8.1 The cost is being amortized using straight line method over a period of three years.

9 LONG TERM DEPOSITS
Considered good:

Finance lease deposits 17,495 17,495 
Diminishing Musharka deposit Note 9.1 & 17.4 792 —    
Ijarah lease deposit Note 9.2 2,930 2,930 
Deposit being adjustable within next 
twelve months classified under 
current assets Note 15 (2,930) —   

—   2,930 
Other security deposits 536 536 

18,823 20,961 

9.1 This represent deposit of Rs. 792 thousand (2017: Nil) placed with shariah compliant financial
institution against the Diminishing Musharakah.

9.2 This represent deposit of Rs. 2,930 thousand (2017: Rs. 2,930 thousand) placed with shariah
compliant financial institution.

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

10 DEFERRED COST
Balance at the beginning Note 10.1 17,543 28,885 
Amortization charged Note 28 (8,772) (11,342)

8,771 17,543 

10.1 Deferred costs represent the costs incurred in respect of obtaining an independent / dedicated feeder
for evacuation of power from the Company's power generation unit to Grid Station. The benefit of
these costs are expected to be obtained over the period of license; however, the same are being
amortized over the period of Power Purchase Agreement that is five years.
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2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

11 STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 32,638 26,107 
Spare parts 37,734 38,858 
Loose tools 2,833 2,877 
Stores In transit —   5,171 

73,205 73,013 
Provision for slow moving items 
and obsolescence Note 11.1 17,606 16,856 

55,599 56,157 

11.1 Reconciliation of provision for slow moving 
and obsolete items

Opening balance at the beginning 16,856 15,911 
Charge for the year Note 32 750 945 
Closing balance at the end 17,606 16,856 

12 STOCK-IN-TRADE
Sugar    Note 12.1 & 28 787,770 1,090,774 
Sugar in process Note 28 1,153 650 
Molasses in process 221 137 
Baggasse 900 3,971 

790,044 1,095,532 

12.1 The closing stock of sugar having carrying value of Rs. 781,637 thousand (2017: Carrying Value of
Rs. 1,116,925 thousand and net realizable value Rs. 941,403 thousand) has been pledged against
cash finance obtained from Banking Companies.

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

13 TRADE DEBTS
Local Sales - Unsecured, Considered
 good under contracts 28,726 —   

28,726 —   
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2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

14 LOANS AND ADVANCES 
Interest free
Loans to Employees - Other than CEO, 

Directors  & Executives Note 14.1 2,340 1,310 
Un-Secured
Advances to

- Employees against salaries 158 49 
- Contractors and suppliers 28,304 33,027 
- Growers  Considered good 

            - non interest bearing Note 14.2 8,039 3,330 
- interest bearing Note 14.3 — 78,569 
Considered doubtful 6,925 6,925 

14,964 88,824 
Impairment allowance against 
doubtful growers advances 6,925 6,925 

8,039 81,899 
38,841 116,285 

14.1 Loans have been given to employees for the purchase of house hold equipments and housing
assistance in accordance with the terms of the employments and are repayable in the different
monthly installments. These are usually against their balances of retirement benefits.

14.2 The Company makes advances to growers in form of cash payments and in shape of fertilizers /
seeds, which are adjustable against the supplies of sugarcane during the following season.

14.2.1 It includes an amount of Rs.1,764 thousand (2017: Rs. 21 thousand) in respect of due from related
parties. The maximum month end aggregate amount due from related parties during the year was 
Rs.7,626 thousand (2017: Rs.13,474 thousand).

14.2.2 Aging analysis of due from related parties is as follows:

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

Upto six months 264 —    
Upto three months 1,500 21 

1,764 21 

14.3 The company makes advance to growers in cash through obtaining grower loan from the commercial
bank. The interest paid to the bank has been charged to the respective growers. Therefore, this
included interest charged to growers during the year amounting to Rs. 5,648 thousand (2017: Rs.
5,443 thousand) at the rate ranging from 8.15% to 8.43% (2017: 8.09% to 8.21%). However, these
have been recovered during the year.
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2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

15 TRADE DEPOSITS & SHORT TERM PREPAYMENTS
Trade Deposits
Bank Guarantee Margin Note 26.2 3,750 6,250 
Letter of Credit Margin Note 15.1 —   2,589 
Lease deposit being adjustable within 

next twelve months Note 9 2,930 —  
Others 75 75 

6,755 8,914 
Short Term Prepayments
Prepaid Insurance 1,738 1,494 
Prepaid Rent 3,464 1,200 
Labour Court - Hyderabad Note 26.1.8 456 —  

5,658 2,694 
12,413 11,608 

15.1 This represents margin of Rs. Nil (2017: Rs. 2,589 thousand) placed with shariah compliant financial
institution.

16 OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered Good
Due from Federal & Provincial Government 
against subsidy Note 16.1 157,381 —   
Road Cess receivable Note 16.2 3,613 3,613 

160,994 3,613 
Considered doubtful
Inland freight subsidy receivable Note 16.3 18,713 18,713 
Further sales tax refundable Note 16.4 8,558 8,558 
Due from deceased executive Note 16.5 —   12,996 

27,271 40,267 
Impairment allowance against doubtful (27,271) (40,267)

160,994 3,613 

16.1 This represents the subsidy on export of sugar receivable from the Federal & Provincial governments.

16.2 This represents receivable of Mill & Growers share of Sugarcane (Development) Cess for the
crushing season 2014-15. The Company has paid the Cess and as per the notification issued by the
Agriculture, Supply & Prices Department, Government of Sindh, the Company has filed
documentation in this respect in the relevant department for refund of the said Cess. The outcome of
the same is awaited.

16.3 These were the receivable from the Government of Pakistan through Trade Development Authority of 
Pakistan. Total receivable in this respect amounted to Rs. 21,703 thousands; however an amount of
Rs. 2,990 thousand relating to the export sales of year 2013-14, was not accounted for in the books
as a matter of prudence. Further, due to uncertainties regarding the recoverability of the subsidy, and
as a matter of prudence, an impairment allowance has been made against the amount of Inland
Freight Subsidy already recorded.
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16.4 This represent Further Sales Tax of one percent on sales to unregistered persons. The Company
paid Further Tax in the monthly Sales Tax & Federal Excise Returns for the month of June 2013
amounting to Rs. 764 thousand and July 2013 amounting to Rs. 3,519 thousand on buyers behalf
which aggregated to Rs. 4,283 thousand and not received by the buyers. In addition, an amount of
Rs. 4,275 thousand on account of Further Tax at the rate of two percent on sales to unregistered
persons was again been paid by the Company and not received from the buyers. Further, due to
uncertainties regarding the recoverability, and as a matter of prudence, an impairment allowance has
been made against the amount of Further Tax already recorded.

2018      2017    
16.5 Due from deceased executive:                                                                  (Rupees in ‘000)     

Due from deceased executive —     12,996 
Impairment allowance of due from 
deceased executive Note 16.5.1 —     (12,996)

—     —     

16.5.1 Impairment allowance
Impairment allowance of due from deceased executive 12,996  12,996 
Written off during the year (12,996) —     

—     12,996 

17 CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 210 608 
Cash at banks

In current accounts  7,935 19,113 
Impairment allowance against the 
dormant bank accounts Note 32 (1,074) —   

Note 17.1 6,861 19,113 
7,071 19,721 

17.1 Cash at banks include Rs. 2,650 thousand (2017: Rs. 5,189 thousand) with shariah compliant
financial institutions.

18 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP CAPITAL 2018      2017 
2018      2017                                                                        (Rupees in ‘000) 

10,860,000 10,860,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each allotted
 for consideration paid in cash 108,600 108,600

1,086,000 1,086,000 Ordinary shares of Rs.10 each
allotted as bonus shares       10,860      10,860 

  11,946,000   11,946,000     119,460    119,460

19 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT
Gross opening balance 498,972 528,905 
Revaluation Surplus during the year 1,023,393 —     
Incremental depreciation charged on surplus on revaluation 
of property, plant & equipment - net of deferred tax (20,565) (20,953)
Deferred Tax on Incremental Depreciation charged 
on surplus on revaluation of property, plant & equipment (7,606) (8,980)

(28,171) (29,933)
1,494,194 498,972 

Related deferred Tax (394,322) (123,754)
Revaluation surplus net of deferred tax 1,099,872 375,218 
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19.1 The Company carries its land, building and plant & machinery on revaluation model in accordance
with IAS - 16 “Property, Plant & Equipment”. During the year an independent valuer carried out
revaluation and issued report on October 01, 2018. Forced sale value has been determined by the
valuer using New Replacement Value i.e., the estimated cost to replace an existing asset or with a
substitute of like kind and equal utility using the current standards of materials and design and with no
deduction for depreciation as follows:

(Rupees in '000)             
Discount Present     Forced   

Factor in % Market Value Sale Value
Free hold Land 13% 115,000 100,000
Building (Factory & Non-Factory) 15% 286,000 243,000
Plant & Machinery 20% 2,288,000 1,830,000

19.2 The revaluation surplus on property, plant and equipment is a capital reserve and is not available for
distribution to shareholders of the Company  in accordance with the section 241 of the Companies Act 
2017.

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

20 LONG TERM FINANCING
Secured
From Banking Company under mark-up arrangements
Demand Finance - I Note 20.1 & 20.3 25,000 47,000 
Demand Finance - II Note 20.2 & 20.3 193,198 241,500 
Diminishing Musharakah Note 9.1 & 20.4 23,529 7,922 

241,727 296,422 
Current portion shown under current liabilities (87,936) (87,000)

153,791 209,422 

20.1 This represents Demand Finance I obtained from MCB Bank Limited under mark-up arrangements
and is repayable in 16 varying quarterly installments starting from December 2015 with a mark-up
payments @ 3 months KIBOR + 2.5% chargeable and payable on quarterly basis. 

20.2 This represents Demand Finance II obtained from MCB Bank Limited under mark-up arrangements
and is repayable in 16 quarterly installments starting from November 2017 with a mark-up payments
@ 3 months KIBOR + 2.5% chargable and payable on quarterly basis.

20.3 The above loans are secured against the Personal Guarantees of all Sponsoring Directors. 1st
Exclusive Charge over specific plant & Machinery. 1st Registered Exclusive charge over all Land &
Building of the Company. Additionally secured against 1st paripassu charge over  other plant &
machinery of the Company

20.4 This represents Diminishing Musharakah arrangement from shariah compliant financial institution
under profit arrangements and repayable in five years in quarterly installments with a profit payments
@ 6 months KIBOR + 3%. This loan is secured against the title over specific machinery.
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2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

21 LIABILITIES AGAINST ASSET SUBJECT TO FINANCE LEASE 
Balance at the beginning of the year 173,179 107,592 
Lease obtained during the year   Note 7.2 —    91,908 
Repayments during the year (33,077) (26,321)

140,102 173,179 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 43,030 37,310 

Note 21.1 97,072 135,869 

21.1 The amounts of future payments for the lease and the period of their maturity is as follows:

Minimum Lease Financial  Present Value
Payments (MLP) Charges   of MLP      

                                                                                    ........................... Rupees in 000 ........................
                                                                                          ................................. 2018  ..................................

Rentals due within one year 55,620 12,590 43,030 
Rentals due after one year but within five years 108,323 11,251 97,072 

Balance as at September 30, 2018       163,943 23,841 140,102 

                                                                                          ................................. 2017  ..................................

Rentals due within one year 51,344 14,034 37,310 
Rentals due after one year but within five years 158,322 22,453 135,869 

Balance as at September 30, 2017       209,666 36,487 173,179 

21.1.1 The Company has entered into direct lease agreement for an amount of Rs. 52,908 thousand with a
grace period of six months & Rs. 30,000 thousand with Orix Leasing Pakistan Limited. Lease rentals
are payable in 48 months on monthly basis started from December 2017 and October 2017
respectively. Earlier, the Company entered into sale & lease back agreement, for an amount of Rs.
30,000 thousand with Orix Leasing Pakistan Limited. Lease rentals are payable in 48 monthly
installments started from October 2015. The Company has option to purchase the assets upon expiry
of the lease term by making payment of residual value by way of adjustment of security deposit and
intends to opt such option. Minimum lease payments have been discounted using rates linked with
KIBOR ranging between 10.12% to 11.14% (2017: 10.12% to 10.41%) being rates implicit in the
lease.

21.1.2 The Company has entered into lease agreement, for an amount of Rs. 70,000 thousand and Rs.
9,000 thousand with Sindh Leasing Company Limited. The Company has option to purchase the
assets upon expiry of the lease term by making payment of residual value by way of adjustment of
security deposit. Minimum lease payments have been discounted using rates linked with 6 Months
Kibor plus 4.25% ranging between 10.40% to 12.29% (2017: 10.38% to 10.41%) being rates implicit
in the lease. Lease rentals are payable in 60 months in arrears on monthly basis.
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2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

22 DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Deferred taxation Note 22.1 464,526 182,060 
Market committee fee Note 22.2 66,934 59,813 
Employees retirement benefits 

- Defined benefit plan Note 22.3 68,733 54,884 
- Leave Encashment plan Note 22.4 3,597 3,317 

603,790 300,074 

22.1 Deferred taxation:
Opening Balance 182,060 190,966 
Impact of change in tax rate on revaluation surplus (12,375) —   
Deferred tax on fresh revaluation taken to 
other comprehensive income 290,549 —   
Impact of deferred tax on actuarial loss (1,150) —   
Reversal during the year Note 35 5,442 (8,906)
Closing balance 464,526 182,060 

22.1.1 Deferred tax (debit) / credit arising due to:
Deferred tax credit arising due to:

- surplus on revaluation 394,322 123,754 
- accelerated depreciation 122,295 116,307 
- assets obtained under finance lease 11,528 4,707 

528,145 244,768 
Deferred tax debit arising due to:

- provisions / impairment (43,075) (45,442)
- minimum tax and tax credit carried forward (20,544) (17,266)

464,526 182,060 

22.2 Market committee fee
Opening Balance 59,813 53,560 
Charge during the year 7,121 6,253 
Closing balance Note 22.2.1 66,934 59,813 

22.2.1 The Company has filed a suit in the Honourable High Court of Sindh against the levy of market
committee fee by the Government of Sindh on sugarcane purchases at the factory. The Sindh High
Court has granted status quo. Full provision has been made as a matter of prudence.

22.3 Employees Retirement Benefits - Defined Benefits Plan
The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its employees eligible to the benefit effective 
from July 01, 2003 and provision is made as per actuarial valuation of the scheme conducted as of
September 30, 2018 by M/s Nauman Associates (Consulting Actuaries) under the “Projected Unit
Credit ” method. The significant actuarial assumptions used for actuarial valuation for the gratuity
scheme are as follows: 
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2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

22.3.1 Movement in the present value of the obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 54,884 50,541 
Charge for the year

Current service cost 7,639 6,220 
Interest cost 3,807 3,205 

11,446 9,425 
Benefits paid during the year (1,858) (5,082)
Actuarial loss & experience adjustments Note 22.3.4 4,261 —    
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 68,733 54,884 

22.3.2 Expense for the year charged to statement of Profit or Loss
Current service cost 7,639 6,220 
Interest cost 3,807 3,205 

11,446 9,425 

22.3.3 Charge for the year has been allocated as under:
Cost of sales Note 28.1 8,585 7,069 
Administrative cost Note 31.1 2,861 2,356 

11,446 9,425 

22.3.4 Actuarial loss & experience adjustments
Actuarial loss from changes in financial assumptions 336 —  
Experience adjustments 3,925 —  

4,261 —  

22.3.5 Significant Actuarial Assumptions 2018 2017
Discount rate used for interest cost 7.25% 13.50%
Discount rate used for year end obligation 10% 7.25%
Salary increased used for year end obligation 9% 6.25%
Retirement age Age 60 Age 60 
Mortality Rates SLIC SLIC

2001-2005 2001-2005
Setback Setback
1 year 1 year

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

22.3.6 Year end Sensitivity Analysis 
(+ 100 bps) on Defined Benefit Obligation
Discount Rate + 100 bps 62,190 51,629 
Discount Rate - 100 bps 69,961 58,143 
Salary Increase + 100 bps 70,050 58,208 
Salary Increase - 100 bps 62,044 51,492 
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22.3.7 Expected Benefit Payments for the next 10 years and beyond

Year   (Rs. in ‘000) Year   (Rs. in ‘000)

FY 2019 12,696 FY 2025 9,726 

FY 2020 5,100 FY 2026 13,956

FY 2021 7,055 FY 2027 17,419 

FY 2022 8,178 FY 2028 10,374 

FY 2023 12,875 FY 2029 onwards 267,963 

FY 2024 9,254 
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 6 years

22.4 Employees Retirement Benefit - Leave Encashment:
The Company operates an unfunded leave encashment scheme for its employees eligible to the
benefit and provision  is made as per actuarial valuation of the scheme conducted as of September
30, 2018 by M/s Nauman Associates (Consulting Actuaries) under the “Projected Unit Credit”
method. The significant actuarial assumptions used for actuarial valuation for the leave encashment
scheme are as follows: 

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

22.4.1 Movement in the present value of the obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 3,317 3,029 
Charge for the year

Current service cost 855 849 
Interest cost 227 188 

1,082 1,037 
Benefits paid during the year (797) (865)
Actuarial loss from changes in financial assumptions 14 5 
Experience adjustments (19) 111 
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 3,597 3,317 

22.4.2 Expense for the year charged to Statement of Profit or Loss
Current service cost 855 849 
Interest cost 227 188 
Actuarial loss from changes in financial assumptions 14 5 
Experience adjustments (19) 111 

1,077 1,153 

22.4.3 Charge for the year has been allocated as under:
Cost of sales Note 28.1 808 865 
Administrative cost Note 31.1 269 288 

1,077 1,153 
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2018      2017    
22.4.4 Significant Actuarial Assumptions 

Discount rate used for interest cost 8% 7.25%
Discount rate used for year end obligation 10% 8%
Salary increased used for year end obligation 9% 7%
Retirement age Age 60 Age 60 
Mortality Rates SLIC SLIC     

2001-2005 2001-2005 
Setback Setback
1 year 1 year

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

22.4.5 Year end Sensitivity Analysis 
(+ 100 bps) on Defined Benefit Obligation
Discount Rate + 100 bps 3,270 3,146 
Discount Rate - 100 bps 3,630 3,510 
Salary Increase + 100 bps 3,635 3,515 
Salary Increase - 100 bps 3,262 3,138 

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors Note 23.1 & 23.2 589,033 268,439 
Accrued liabilities Note 23.3 47,451 34,546 
Advances from customers 260 36,894 
Sales tax / Further Tax payable 42,955 32,154 
Workers' Profit participation Fund Note 23.4 1,336 —   
Workers' Welfare Fund 1,831 3,381 
Other liabilities Note 23.5 5,207 3,185 

688,073 378,599 

23.1 This includes an amount of Rs. 2,852 thousand (2017: Rs. 2,024 thousand) due to related parties
namely Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar, Haji Khuda Bux Rajar, Gul Muhammad, Muhammad Hashim.

23.1.1 The maximum aggregate amount due to related parties at any month end during the year was Rs.
9,355 thousand (2017: Rs. 15,086 thousand).

23.2 This includes an amount of Rs.157,579 thousand (2017: Rs.157,579) in respect of the suit filed by the
Company in the Honorable High Court of Sindh during the season 2013-14 against the cane purchase
price of Rs. 172 per 40 kg as fixed by Government of Sindh which was dismissed by the Honorable High 
Court and the matter was taken up by the Company with the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. In
the due course of time, the Government of Sindh fixed the price of sugarcane for the season 2014-15 at
Rs. 182 per 40 Kg in pursuance of which the Sindh Chamber of Agriculture filed a petition in the
Honorable High Court of Sindh. The Honorable High Court disposed of the case upon settlement with
the consent of all the stake holders whereby it was settled that Sugar Mills shall purchase the sugarcane 
from growers at Rs. 160 per 40 kg for crushing season 2014-15 whereas Rs. 12 per 40 kg will be paid by 
the Government of Sindh. The Honorable High Court has subjected this interim arrangement to the
decision of Civil appeal No 48 of 2015 pending before the Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan and
also have ordered that the fate of remaining Rs. 10 i.e., difference of Rs. 182 and 172 will also be
dependent upon the decision of Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan. The Company as a matter of
prudence has accounted for the said difference in the financial statements.
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23.3 This includes an amount of Rs. 11,176 thousand (2017: Rs. 9,688 thoousand) in respect of the
Constitutional Petition filed by the Company in the Honourable High Court of Sindh, Hyderabad
Circuit against the increase in rates by Nara Canal Area Water Board through its notification dated
22.11.2010 had increased the water supply rates from Rs. 1 per gallon to Rs. 10 per gallon. The
petition has been disposed off leaving the petitioner free to invoke arbitration proceedings in terms of
agreement entered into between the petitioner and the respondent. Arbitration proceedings are
pending thereat. The Company is the confident that matter will be decided favorably; however as a
matter of prudence has accounted for the said difference in the financial statements.

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

23.4 Workers Profit Participation Fund
Opening balance at the beginning of the year —   594 
Interest paid on funds utilized by the Company Note 23.4.1 —   32 

—   626 
Less: Payments made during the year —   (626)

—   —   
Add: Allocation for the year Note 32 1,336 —   
Closing balance at the end of the year 1,336 —    

23.4.1 The effective rate of interest applied during the year was Nil (2017: 12.5%).
23.5 Other liabilities

Income tax deducted at source 2,346 1,516 
Cane field staff Note 23.5.1 323 116 
Others - Employees' social security & old age 
benefits, workers compensation & others 2,538 1,553 

5,207 3,185 

23.5.1 These represents amount received from cane field employees under Company's motor cycle policy.

24 ACCRUED FINANCE COST
Accrued mark-up on long term financing 5,469 6,390 
Accrued mark-up / Profit on short term borrowings Note 24.1 23,566 40,117 

29,035 46,507 

24.1 Accrued Markup / profit on short term borrowings includes Rs. 6,242 thousand (2017: Rs. 21,920
thousand) in respect of shariah compliant financial institution.

25 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS -Secured
Cash Finance / Karobar Finance Note 25.1 & 25.2 921,483 1,193,557 
Running Finance Note 25.1 100,000 100,000 

1,021,483 1,293,557 

25.1 The aggregate financing facilities obtained amounted to Rs. 1,675,000 thousand (2017: Rs.
1,675,000 thousand), out of which Rs. 653,517 thousand (2017: Rs. 381,443 thousand) were un-
availed as at the period end. These are secured by pledge of sugar stocks under the supervision of
approved muccadum and hypothecation over current assets of the Company, exclusive & pari passu
hypothecation charge on Company's plant & machinery and 1st equitable mortgage charge over fixed 
assets of the Company. The financing facilities are collaterally secured by the personal guarantees of
all the sponsor directors. The facilities carries markup at 3 & 6 months KIBOR as base rate plus 2% to
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2.75%  per annum (2017: 2% to 2.75%) chargeable and payable quarterly and biannually. The facility
is renewable annually at the time of maturity. 

25.2 This includes Rs. 372,500 thousand (2017: Rs. 550,000 thousand) in respect of  shariah compliant
financial institution.

26 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
26.1 Contingencies:
26.1.1 The Company has filed a petition in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan against a show cause 

notice issued by Competition Commission of Pakistan (CCP), challenging the vary jurisdiction of the
Competition Commission. The Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan has disposed of the petition
on the ground that this matter is already under proceedings with Honourable High Courts and
refrained CCP from passing any final / penal order till a final decision is achieved at Honourable High
Courts. Proceedings are pending thereat. There are no financial implications related to this at the
moment.

26.1.2 The Company has filed a suit before the Honourable High Court of Sindh against Pakistan Standards
and Quality Control Authority (the Authority) Challenging the levy of marking fee under PSQCA Act-VI 
of 1996. The Authority has demanded a fee payment @ 0.1% of ex-factory price for the year  2008-
2009 amounting to Rs. 1,915  thousands. The Company is of the view that demand notifications so
raised are without any lawful authority under the PSQCA Act-VI of 1996 and are in violation of the
constitution. The Honourable High Court of Sindh has accepted the petition and termed that
impugned notifications have been issued without lawful authority and suspended the operation of the
impugned notifications. The constitutional petition filed before the Honourable High Court of Sindh
has been allowed in favour of the Company. In the meantime the legal counsel of the Company has
filed caveat in respect of an appeal to be filed by PSQCA against the judgment in the Honourable
Supreme Court of Pakistan. No provision has been made in this respect, as the Company is confident
that the same is not likely to be materialized.

26.1.3 The Company’s appeal in the Honourable Supreme Court against the Order of the Honourable Sindh
High Court for levy of Quality Premium was accepted by the Honourable Supreme Court by assailing
the Order of Honourable Sindh High Court. Furthermore Federal Government steering committee
through its decision on 16-07-2007 held that the quality premium shall remain suspended till decision
of Honourable Supreme Court or consensus on uniform formula to be developed by MINFAL.

During the year, the appeal of the quality premium, has been decided by the Honourable Supreme
Court of Pakistan against the Sugar Manufacturing Companies and the Legal Counsel of the
Company is of the view that the Honourable Supreme Court has now simply prescribed the criteria for
future, which if followed properly, would make quality premium applicable in the future, and in relation
to the past (other than crushing season 1998 – 1999) it appears that no liability arose as no legally
binding notification under section 16(v) can be said to be in the field in the light of the decision of the
Honourable Supreme Court. Accordingly, no liability arises for the past and for the year 1998 – 99 the
recovery rate was below the threshold determined by the Government, hence, no provision is
required to be made and further the Company has already paid price higher than the minimum
notified price. 

26.1.4 During the year, the Government of Sindh issued a notification no. 8(142)/ S.O(EXT)2017, according
to which, the minimum price of sugarcane has been fixed at the rate of Rs. 182 per 40 kg for the
crushing season 2017-2018. The Company along with other Sugar mills has filed a petition in the
Honourable High Court of Sindh dated 19 December 2017 against the said notification. Thereafter,
the Honourable Court after deliberations with all stakeholders announced the judgement fixing the
purchase price at the Rs. 160 to be paid to growers and the balance of Rs. 22 per 40 kg to be decided
by the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan which is pending. The differential amount aggregating
to Rs. 391,668 thousand has not been accounted for since the purchase price has been agreed with
the parties and outcome of the Honourable Supreme Court is not likely to be against the Company.

96



Furthermore, the Company along with other sugar mills have also filed petition in the Honourable
Supreme Court challenging the minimum price fixation mechanism, which is also pending before the
Honourable Court. 

26.1.5 During the year, the Company has filed an appeal in the Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan
against the order passed by the Honourable High Court of Sindh – Circuit Court Hyderabad in the
matter of Constitutional Petition No. D - 334 of 2012 (Sanghar Sugar Mills Limited vs Sindh Labour
Appellant Tribunal and Others) against the Company. The said appeal was filed against the Sindh
Labour Appellate Tribunal for the decision made by the Appellate Tribunal (Hyderabad). The
Honourable Supreme Court of Pakistan has suspended the operation of the impugned judgement
and directed the Company to let the amount of salary on the basis of last drawn arrears of salary
during season and salary of retention during off season and as per directions the Company has
deposited an amount of Rs. 456 thousand (2017: Nil) in the Labour Court of Hyderabad. The Case
has challenged the decision of Labour Appellate Tribunal and the Honourable High Court of Sindh,
wherein the chances of Company's success are higher.

26.2 Guarantee:
Rs.15,000 thousand (2017: Rs. 25,000 thousand) guarantee issued by the Bank for six months
period in favour of Engro Fertilizers Limited on behalf of the Company for the procurement of
Fertilizers for onward supply to sugarcane growers. The guarantee is secured against the 25% cash
margin and rest against the existing charge over current and fixed assets of the Company held as
collateral. Also refer note no 15 of the financial statements.

26.3 Commitments:
26.3.1 Capital commitments in respect of plant and machinery amounted to Rs. 25,300 thousand (2017: Rs.

54,486 thousand).

26.3.2 The Company has committed for donation of 5 acre of land through the Board of Directors' decision in
their meeting held on October 29, 2016 recommended donation of 5 acre land out of total 320 acres
Company’s land at factory located at Sanghar to Workers Welfare Fund, Government of Pakistan,
Islamabad, for the purpose of construction of Fifty Beds Hospital in the vicinity of factory premises of
Sanghar Sugar Mills. This has already been approved by the shareholders of the Company in their
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on November 23, 2016. The carrying value of the land as on the
year end date is Rs 110 thousand whereas its market value based on revaluation report of an
independent professional valuator is Rs. 1,793 thousand. In order to implement the Agreements, the
formalities of transfer of Land and other documentation are in process till date.

26.3.3 The Company has entered into Ijarah Lease agreement, for the amount of Rs. 29,334 thousands with
Al-Baraka Bank Pakistan Limited acquire of Shredder Turbine for enhancing power generation
capacity. The Company has option to purchase the assets upon expiry of the lease term by making
payment of residual value by way of adjustment of security deposit. Ijarah Rentals are based on profit
rates linked with KIBOR + 3% (2017: KIBOR + 3%). Ijarah lease rentals are payable in 20 quarterly
installments starting from March 2014. 

The Company is committed for minimum Ijarah rental payments for each of the following period as
follows and Ijarah Lease is arrangement with shariah compliant financial institution:

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

Not more than one year 1,776 8,880 

More than one year but not more than two years —   1,776 
1,776 10,656 
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2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

27 SALES
Local Sales 3,455,534 2,880,081 
Export Sales 361,726 —   
Less: Brokerage and Commission (825) (797)

Sales Tax / Further Tax (410,900) (296,052)
(411,725) (296,849)

3,405,535 2,583,232 
28 COST  OF  SALES

Sugar cane consumed (including cane 
procurement expenses) 2,871,755 3,109,983 
Salaries, wages and staff benefits Note 28.1 162,753 140,446 
Stores,  spare parts & loose tools consumed 122,614 96,463 
Fuel, power & utilities 8,240 10,342 
Insurance 13,417 11,296 
Repairs and maintenance 5,995 5,615 
Vehicle running expenses 7,460 7,499 
Ijarah Lease Rentals Note 28.2 7,106 7,111 
Depreciation Note 7.1.2 77,748 52,900 
Amortization of deferred cost Note 10 8,772 11,342 
Other expenses 12,560 11,090 

3,298,420 3,464,087 
Sale of Electric Power Note 28.3 31,365 42,086 
Sugar -in-process 
-  Opening 650 1,609 
-  Closing Note 12 (1,153) (650)

(503) 959 
3,266,552 3,422,960 

Sale of Molasses Note 28.4 265,528 260,550 
Inventory adjustment for molasses 84 (42)

265,612 260,508 
Sale of Baggasse Note 28.5 —   18,093 
Inventory adjustment for bagasse (3,071) (798)

(3,071) 17,295 
Cost of goods manufactured 3,004,011 3,145,157 
Finished sugar
- Opening stock 1,090,774 599,509 
- Closing stock   Note 12 (787,770) (1,090,774)

303,004 (491,265)
3,307,015 2,653,892 

28.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs. 8,585 thousands (2017: Rs. 7,069 thousand) in respect of defined
benefit plan and Rs. 808 thousand (2017: Rs. 865 thousand) in respect of leave encashment plan.

28.2 Ijarah Lease rentals are paid in respect of arrangement with shariah compliant financial institution.
28.3 These figures are net off sales tax of Rs. 5,332 thousands (2017: Rs. 7,155 thousand).
28.4 These figures are net off sales tax of Rs. Nil (2017: Rs. 295 thousand).
28.5 These figures are net off sales tax of Rs. Nil (2017: Rs. 3,076 thousand)
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2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

29 PROFIT FROM TRADING ACTIVITIES
Sales 93,596 —
Less: Sales Tax (4,378) —

89,218 —
Less: Purchases & other expenses thereon (85,665) —

3,553 —

30 DISTRIBUTION COST
Export charges including transportation 28,712 —
Rent of godown, salaries & transportation charges 11,725 —
Handling and Stacking 1,442 796 

41,879 796 

31 ADMINISTRATIVE  COST
Salaries, wages and staff benefits Note 31.1 60,269 56,928 
Rent, rates and taxes 1,121 1,077 
Communication 635 591 
Repairs and maintenance 1,951 1,232 
Utilities 1,340 1,169 
Entertainment 656 584 
Subscription 1,974 2,803 
Cartage 35 19 
Printing and stationery 1,337 1,196 
Insurance 4,472 3,765 
Legal and professional charges 3,088 693 
Conveyance and traveling 3,656 3,367 
Depreciation Note 7.1.2 9,283 9,713 
Amortization of intangible asset Note 8 19 425 
Others 1,135 1,348 

90,971 84,937 

31.1 Salaries, wages and benefits include Rs.  2,861 thousands (2017: Rs. 2,356 thousand) in respect of defined
benefit plan and Rs. 269 thousand (2017: Rs. 288 thousand) in respect of leave encashment plan.

32 OTHER OPERATING COST
Auditors' remuneration Note 32.1 1,118 972 
Impairment allowance for balances of 

dorment bank accounts Note 17 1,074 —   
Impairment allowance for further 

sales tax refundable Note 16.4 — 8,558 
Corporate social responsibility costs Note 32.2 3,026 1,147 
Workers Profit Participation Fund Note 23.4 1,336 —
Workers Welfare Fund 508 —
Provision for slow moving and obsolete items Note 11.1 750 945 

7,812 11,622 
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2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

32.1 Auditors' remuneration
Statutory Auditors - Kreston Hyder Bhimji and Co.
Audit fee 875 775 
Half yearly review fee 90 70 
Code of corporate governance certification 70 55 
Sindh Sales Tax on Services 83 72 

1,118 972 

32.2 Corporate social responsibility costs do not include any amount paid to any person or organization in
which any director or their spouse had any interest.

33 OTHER INCOME
Income from non financial assets:
Gain on sale of items of property, 

plant and equipment Note 7.1.3 464 583 
Others - Rent & related receipts 129 138 

593 721 
Income from others:
Subsidy on Export Sales 177,810 —  
Exchange Gain - net 6,324  —  
Insurance Claim 637 1,380 
Liabilities written back 27 516 

184,798 1,896 
185,391 2,617 

34 FINANCE COST
Mark-up on long term financing Note 34.1 15,005 4,744 
Mark-up / profit on short-term borrowings Note 34.2 & 34.3 95,967 85,805 
Financial charges on liabilities against asset 

subject to finance lease 9,571 2,703 
Bank charges 1,391 996 
Interest on workers' profit participation fund Note 23.4.1 —   32 

121,934 94,280 

34.1 Finance cost includes Rs. 2,221 thousand (2017: Nil ) in respect of financing under shariah compliant
arrangements.

34.2 Finance cost includes Rs. 45,140 thousand (2017: Rs. 34,289 thousand) in respect of financing under 
shariah compliant arrangements.

34.3 This amount is net off of Rs. 5,648 thousand (2017: Rs. 5,443 thousand) in respect of grower finance
to be recovered from growers.

35 TAXATION
Current year Note 35.1 & 35.2 —  36,332 
Deferred Note 22.1 5,442 (8,906)

5,442 27,426 

35.1 Provision for current taxation represents the minimum tax being the turnover tax under section 113 of
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 net of available tax credits, hence tax reconciliation of tax expense with
accounting profit is not presented for the current year. 

35.2 Through the Finance Act, 2018 income tax has been levied at the rate 5% of accounting profit before
tax on every public company that derives profit for a tax year but does not distribute at least 20% of its
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after tax profits within six months of the end of the said tax year. Since the Board of Directors has not
recommended cash dividend for the year ended September 30, 2018, therefore, the provision of tax
liability has been made.

35.3 The management believes that the tax provision made in the financial statements is sufficient. A
comparision of last three years of income tax provision with tax assessed is presented below:

                   As per Financial Statements            As per Return/ Assessment

Year               ................................. (Rupees in 000) .....................................
2017 36,332 36,309 
2016 30,147 30,065 
2015 34,038 20,726 

36 EARNING / (LOSS) PER SHARE - Basic and Diluted 2018    2017  

Profit / (Loss) after taxation  ( Rupees '000 ) 19,426 (287,104)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 11,946,000 11,946,000 

Earnings / (Loss) per share - (Rupees) 1.63 (24.03)

There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company.
2018      2017    

                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     
37 CASH AND CASH EQUVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalent comprise of the following items
Cash and bank balances 7,071 19,721 
Less: Short term borrowings (1,021,483) (1,293,557)

(1,014,412) (1,273,836)

38 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

38.1 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company's financial assets and liabilities at the
following reporting periods.

                                                                                                    2018
Interest / Mark-up bearing   Non Interest / Mark-up bearing

Interest / Maturity Maturity Sub    Maturity Maturity Sub    
markup  upto one after one Total   upto one after one Total   Total  

rate      year    year    year   year     
............................................  (Rupees in ‘000) ...............................................................

Financial Assets
Deposits —   — — 6,755 18,823 25,578 25,578 
Trade debts —   — — 28,726 — 28,726 28,726 
Loans and advances —   — — 2,498 — 2,498 2,498 
Cash and bank balances —   — — 7,071 — 7,071 7,071 
T O T A L            —   — — 45,050 18,823 63,873 63,873 
Financial Liabilities
Long Term Finance   3 M Kibor +

2% & 2.5% 87,936 153,791 241,727  — — — 241,727 
Liabilities against assets  10.12% to 
subject to finance lease     12.29%    43,030 97,072 140,102 — — — 140,102 
Trade & other payables       1,336 — 1,336 637,195 — 637,195 638,531 
Accrued finance cost — — — 29,035 — 29,035 29,035 
Short-term borrowings   3 & 6 M Kibor + 1,021,483 — 1,021,483 — — — 1,021,483 

2% to 2.75%

T O T A L    1,153,785 250,863 1,404,648 666,230 — 666,230 2,070,878 
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                                                                                                    2017
Interest / Mark-up bearing   Non Interest / Mark-up bearing

Interest / Maturity Maturity Sub    Maturity Maturity Sub    
markup  upto one after one Total   upto one after one Total   Total  

rate      year    year    year   year   2016  
............................................  (Rupees in ‘000) ...............................................................

Financial Assets
Deposits —   —   —   8,839 20,961 29,800 29,800 
Loans and advances —   —   —   1,359 —   1,359 1,359 
Cash and bank balances —   —   —   19,721 —   19,721 19,721 
T O T A L           —   —   —   29,919 20,961 50,880 50,880 
Financial Liabilities
Long Term Finance   3 M Kibor +

2% & 2.5% 87,000 209,422 296,422 —   —   —   296,422 
Liabilities against assets  10.12% to 
subject to finance lease     10.41%    37,310 135,869 173,179 —   —   —   173,179 
Trade & other payables 12.50%      —   —   —   359,009 —   359,009 359,009 
Accrued finance cost —   —   —   46,507 —   46,507 46,507 
Short-term borrowings   3 & 6 M Kibor + 1,293,557 —   1,293,557 —   —   —   1,293,557 

2% to 2.75%

T O T A L    1,417,867 345,291 1,763,158 405,516 —   405,516 2,168,674 

39 FINANCIAL RISKS MANAGEMENT
39.1 Financial Risk Management Objectives, Policies and Responsibilities  

The Company's overall risk management programs focus on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's operations. The
Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risk faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and control, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. 
The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of
Company’s risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and
monitoring the Company's risk management policies. Risk management policies and systems are
reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the Company's activities.
The Company's senior management provides policies for overall risk management, as well as
policies covering specific areas such as foreign exchange risks, interest rate risks, credit risks,
financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity. It is the Company's policy that no trading
in derivatives for speculative purpose shall be undertaken.
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
-  Market risk
-  Credit risk
-  Liquidity risk

39.1.1 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes 
in market interest rates or the market price due to change in credit rating of the issuer of the
instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities
and liquidity in the market. The company is subject to following market risks;

39.1.1.1 Foreign Exchange Risk 
Foreign exchange risk represents the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate  because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk
arises mainly from future economic transaction or receivables or payables that exist due to
transactions in foreign exchange. During the year the Company has exposure to foreign currency
risk, however as at year end the Company is not exposed to foreign currency risk but the
Company was exposed to such risk as at the previous year end arising from foreign exchange
fluctuations due to the following financial liability / committment:
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Foreign currency commitment outstanding as at the year end is as follows:

2018   2017     
Import letter of credit - Euro (In '000) —     163 

The exchange rate as at the reporting date - Rupees per Euro: —     125.70 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for foreign currency
A change of 5% in exchange rate at the reporting date would have decreased / (increased) liability
by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign
currency rates, remain constant.

                                                                            .............. 2018 .................        .............. 2017 .................
                                                                                  (Rupees in '000 )                      (Rupees in '000 ) 

Financial liabilities (increase) decrease (increase) decrease 

Cash flow sensitivity - on
statement of financial position           —   —      (1,025) 1,025 

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit / (Loss) for the 
year and assets / liabilities of the Company.

39.1.1.2 Interest / Mark-up rate risk
Interest / mark-up rate risk is the risk that value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest / mark-up rates. The Company has mainly long
term finance, liabilities against asset subject to finance lease, short term borrowings and workers'
profit participation fund which are based at varying rates.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company's significant interest / mark-up
bearing financial instruments are as follows:  

2018 2017 2018 2017
                                                  Effective interest / markup rate             Carrying amount
                                                                   (in percent)                              (Rupees in '000)

Financial liabilities
Variable rate instruments 
Long Term Finance 3 M Kibor + 2% 3 M Kibor + 2% 

& 2.5%  2.5% 241,727 296,422 
Finance lease obligation 10.12% to 10.12% to
 12.29% 10.41% 140,102 173,179 
Short term borrowings 3 & 6 M Kibor + 3  & 6 M Kibor +

2% to 2.75%  2% to 2.75% 1,021,483 1,293,557 
Workers Profit 
Participation Fund 12.5% — 1,336  —     

      1,404,648     1,763,158 
Off statement of financial 
position items
Ijarah Rentals 6 M Kibor + 3% 6 M Kibor + 3%      1,776        10,656  

Sensitivity analysis
Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments
The Company does not account for any fixed rate instruments at fair value through statement of
profit or loss.
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Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments.
A change of 100 basis points in interest / mark-up rates at the reporting date would have
decreased / (increased) profit before tax for the year by the amounts shown below. This analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2017.

                                                                            .............. 2018 .................        .............. 2017 .................
                                                                                  (Rupees in '000 )                      (Rupees in '000 ) 
                                                                            Profit and loss 100 bp               Profit and loss 100 bp

Financial liabilities (increase) decrease (increase) decrease 

Cash flow sensitivity on
statement of financial position   (14,046) 14,046     (17,632) 17,632 

Cash flow sensitivity -  off
statement of financial position           (18) 18       (107) 107 

The sensitivity analysis prepared is not necessarily indicative of the effects on profit for the year
and assets / liabilities of the Company.

39.1.1.3 Other Price Risk 
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows from a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or
currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial
instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
The Company does not have financial instruments dependent on such market prices.

39.1.2 Credit Risk
Credit risk represents the accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counter
parties failed to perform as contracted. To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade
receivables, management performs credit reviews taking into account the customer's financial
position, past experience and other factors. Sales contracts and credit terms are approved by the
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director. The Company manages credit risk interalia by
setting out credit limits in relation to individual customers and / or by obtaining advance against the 
sales and / or through letter of credits and / or by providing adequate allowance for doubtful debts.
Where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties or by obtain
advance payments from counter parties.
Concentration of credit risk arises when a number of counter parties are engaged in similar
business activities or have similar economic features that would cause their abilities to meet
contractual obligation to be similarly effected by the changes in economic, political or other
conditions. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of credit risk. 
The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure before any
credit enhancements. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is:

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

Deposits 25,578 29,800 
Trade debts 28,726 —    
Loans and advances 2,498 1,359 
Bank balances 6,861 19,113 

63,663 50,272 
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a) Deposits
Deposits are due from leasing companies, ijarah deposits, margin deposits placed with
commercial banks and others. Major amount of the deposits are from leasing companies which
have good credit ratings from the rating agencies and also the lease deposits are secured
against the leased asset. The other deposit are placed against the utility facilities like electricity
& water with Government entities. The Company believes that it is not exposed to significant
credit risk in this respect.

b) Trade Debts
These represents balances due from registered buyers against the sale of sugar. Subsequent
to the year end all the balances of trade debts have been received and realized. Therefore, the
Comapny believe that it is not expose to significant credit risk in this respect.

c) Loans and Advances
These represent balances due from employees that are mostly against their balances of
retirement benefits. Advances given to growers in cash or through fertilizer / seeds are
recovered through the adjustments in cane supplies payments in the ensuing season.
Impairment allowance has been made against the growers loan became past due and non
recoverable. The Company actively pursues for the recovery and based on past experience the 
Company does not expect that these will fail to meet their obligations hence no impairment
allowance is necessary other than already made in these financial statements.

d) Balances with Bank
The Company limits its exposure to credit risk by maintaining bank balances only with counter-
parties that have stable credit rating. Management actively monitors credit ratings of the
counter parties and given their high credit ratings, management does not expect that the
counter party will fail to meet their obligations.

The bank balances along with the short term credit ratings are tabulated below:

2018      2017    
          Credit Rating                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

A1+ 3,121 11,606 
A1 2,585 3,919 
A-1+ 1,155 3,587 
A-1 —   1 

6,861 19,113 

39.1.2.1 Financial assets that are either past due or impaired
The credit quality of financial assets that are either past due or impaired can be assessed by
reference to historical information and external ratings or to historical information about counter
party default rates as disclosed in respective notes. Management believes that there are no
financial asset that are either past due or impaired.

39.1.3 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk represent the risk where the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations
associated with financial liabilities. The maturity profile of the Company's financial assets and
liabilities as at the reporting date with respect to period lags is given in Note 38.1.
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and ensuring the fund
availability through adequate credit facilities. As at September 30, 2018, the Company has
available un-availed short term borrowing facilities of Rs. 653,517 thousands (2017: Rs.381,443
thousands) and also has cash & bank balances of Rs.7,071 thousands (2017: 19,721 thousands). 
Based on the above, the management believes that the Company is not significantly exposed to
the liquidity risk.
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39.2 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as 
a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to 
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares and take other measures commensuration to the circumstances. The Company finances its
expansions projects through equity, borrowings and management of its working capital with a view to
maintaining an appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risk.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total shareholders
equity plus net debt. Net debt is calculated as total loans and borrowings less cash and bank
balances. The Company's strategy was to maintain leveraged gearing.  The gearing ratio as at
balance sheet date is as follows:

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

... Restated ...
Total financing and borrowings including finance lease 1,403,312 1,763,158 
Less: Cash and bank balances (7,071) (19,721)
Net debt 1,396,241 1,743,437 
Total Equity 1,330,699 569,165 
Total capital employed 2,726,940 2,312,602 

Gearing Ratio 51.20% 75.39%

40 FAIR VALUES / MEASUREMENT
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions (i.e. an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique.

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosure require the measurement of fair
values, for both financial, if any and non-financial assets and liabilities. When measuring the fair value 
of an asset or a liability, the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are categorized into
different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as
follows: 

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset 
                or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
               inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring
basis, the management recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of
the reporting period during which the change has occurred. There were no transfers between
different levels of fair values mentioned above.
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Management assessed that the fair values of cash & cash equivalent and short term deposits, trade & 
other receivable, trade receivables, trade payables, short term borrowing and other current liabilities
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these instruments. For
long term asset and long term liabilities, management considers that their carrying values
approximates fair value.

The fair value of land and buildings and plant and machinery is a level 3 recurring fair value
measurement. Management engages an independent external expert / valuator to carry out periodic
valuation of its non-financial assets (i.e. Land, Building and Plant and Machinery) and selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are 
maintained by the valuer.  The Fair Values were determined with reference to market based
evidence, based on active market prices and relevant enquiries and information as considered
necessary, adjusted for any difference in nature, location or condition of the specific property. Recent
valuation was carried on September 30, 2018 and following factors were considered:

Land and Building The valuation is considered on the factors of location, need of the buyers, the
overall prevailing market situation and other considerations linked with this.  

Plant and Machinery Factors taken into consideration in order to assess the present value of the
machinery include Make, Model,Quality, Operational Capacity, Existing
Condition, Demand and Resale Prospets, Depreciation and Obsolesence etc.

41 REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged during the year for remuneration, including all benefits to the Chief
Executive, Directors and Executives of the Company were as follows:

Chief Executive      Directors      Executives Total
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017       2018 2017

............................................................  (Rupees in ‘000) ................................................................

Non executive Directors' 
meeting fee - 1 Director 
(2017: 1 Director)        —   — 240 120 — — 240 120  

Managerial remuneration
- Basic 3,850 3,587 1,475 1,375 3,755 3,993 9,080 8,955 
Perquisite (Bonuses, 
House Rent & Others) 4,806 4,470 2,280 1,917 6,184 5,209 13,270 11,596 
Reimbursable expenses 1,082 990 —   — 924 668 2,006 1,658 
Gratuity Paid — —   —  — — 2,562 — 2,562 

    9,738 9,047 3,755 3,292 10,863 12,432 24,356 24,771 

Number of persons           1 1 1 1 3 4 5 6 

The Chief Executive and Executives as stated above are provided with the Company maintained cars 
and telephone facilities.

All non-executive directors except one director, waived their directors' fee, which was approved in the
Board of Directors meeting.
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42 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company in the normal course of business carried out transactions with related parties as
detailed below:

Name of Related Party Relationship with Company Nature of Transaction 2018 2017

(Rupees in ‘000)

Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar Chairman Cane purchased 18,781 29,363

……….Do………. ……….Do………. Advance against cane purchase 17,898 26,423

Haji Khuda Bux Rajar Chief Executive Cane purchased — 4,360

……….Do………. ……….Do………. Advance against cane purchase — 4

Mr. Gul Mohammad Rajar Son of Chief Executive Cane purchased 5,543 14,064

……….Do………. ……….Do………. Advance against cane purchase 1,107 22

Mr. Muhammad Hashim General Manager Cane purchased 4,770 4,209

……….Do………. ……….Do………. Advance against cane purchase 1,915 86

Transactions, as applicable in relation to Directors of the Company and Key Management Personnel
(KMP) have been disclosed in note # 41. Key Management Personnel are those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the entity directly or
indirectly. 

Outstanding balances of related parties as of the balance sheet and maximum month end aggregate
balance during the year are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial statements. The
advances to related parties against supply of cane were disbursed for the crushing season 2017-18
(2017: 2016-17 and 2017-18) out of which significant amount had already been adjusted against
cane supplied during the crushing season 2017-18 (2017: 2016-17) whereas remaining amount has
been adjusted subsequent to the year-end against the cane supplied for the current crushing season
2018-19 (2017: 2017-18).

43 ENTITY - WIDE INFORMATION
43.1 The Company constitutes of a single reportable segment, the principal class of product is Sugar and

by products are Molasses and Baggasse. The Company is also engaged in the sale of electric power
generated in excess of in-house consumption which does not constitute reportable segment, as same 
do not meet thresh-hold criteria.

43.2 Information about geographical areas
The Company does not hold non-current assets in any foreign country. There is no revenues from
external customers for attribution to foreign countries in these financial statements. The Company is
also not dependant on any single customer. The analysis of sugar sales, by products and sales of
trading activities are as follows:

2018      2017    
                                                                                      (Rupees in ‘000)     

Sales - net
Sugar (local and export) 3,405,535 2,583,232 
Molasses 265,528 260,550 
Baggasse —   18,093 
Electric Power 31,365 42,086 
Trading Activities 89,218 —

3,791,646 2,903,961 
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44 CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION 
2018                     2017                   

   Quantity   No. of        Quantity No. of    
    M. Tons   days        M. Tons days    

Crushing  capacity 8,500 Per day 6,000 Per day

Capacity based on actual
working days 1,207,000 142 798,000 133 

Actual crushing 712,124 142 625,237 133 

Sucrose recovery ( in %) 10.37 10.12 

Sugar production from cane 73,776 63,380 

44.1 Main reason for under utilization of production capacity is lesser availability of sugarcane during the
season.

45 NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of persons employed as on year end were 501 (2017: 525) and average number of employee 
during the year were 775 (2017: 735). Number of factory employees as on year end were 386 (2017:
343) and average number of factory employees during the year were 566 (2017: 530).

46 CORRESPONDING FIGURES
For better presentation and due to revisions in the Companies Act 2017, re-classification has been
made to the comparative figures in the financial statements as follows;

Reclassification from component Reclassification to component (Rupess in  ‘000)
Trade and other payables

- Unclaimed dividend                 Unclaimed Dividend 1,551
- Unclaimed dividend                 Dividend payable 12,436 
- Accrued liabilities                 Deferred Liabilities 

                     –  Employees Retirement Benefits
                     – Leave Encashment plan 3,317 

In view of above reclassification, corresponding figures of statement of cash flows has also been re-
arranged / reclassified.

47 DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issue on December 29, 2018 by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

48 GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to nearest thousand of rupees.

Chief Executive Director Chief Financial Officer
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Pattern of Share Holding
As at September 30, 2018

Number of Share Holding Total       
 Shareholders From To Shares Held

857 1 100 19,883
130 101 500 39,940
94 501 1000 64,021
84 1001 5000 207,500
41 5001 10000 260,920

4 10001 15000 51,455
1 15001 20000 16,500
6 20001 25000 143,000
4 25001 30000 108,440
2 40001 45000 85,750
1 45001 50000 47,900
1 55001 60000 55,750
3 95001 100000 289,140
1 240001 245000 241,487
1 265001 270000 267,740
1 360001 365000 360,179
1 400001 405000 403,100
1 410001 415000 410,982
1 485001 490000 486,390
1 495001 500000 496,000
1 520001 525000 522,600
2 570001 575000 1,145,722
1 655001 660000 659,250
1 670001 675000 674,750
1 855001 860000 858,000
1 910001 915000 913,000
1 975001 980000 979,000
1 1040001 1045000 1,043,116
1 1090001 1095000 1,094,485

  1,245   11,946,000

*   There is no shareholding in the slab not mentioned above.

Category of Shareholders Number of 
Shares Held

Percentage
%        

1   Directors, Chief Executive Officer, and
     their spouse and minor children  1,844,216 15.4379 

2   Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties –       –       
3    Executives 25,290 0.2117
4    NIT & ICP 1,043,516 8.7353 
5    Banks, DFIs, NBFIs, Mudarabas and Pension Fund 101,550 0.8501 
6    Insurance Companies 267,840 2.2421 
7    Joint Stock Companies 27,423 0.2296 
8    Shareholders holding 5% or more 4,519,235 37.8305 
9    General Public - Local 4,116,930 34.4629 

                                    TOTAL     11,946,000   100.0000 
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Detail of Pattern of Share Holding 
As per Requirement of Code of Corporate Governance

As at September 30, 2018

Category Name  Category wise Category 
Number of wise 

shareholders shares held

   Directors, Chief Executive and
   their spouse and minor children 7 1,844,216 15.4379 
   Haji Khuda Bux Rajar 241,487 2.0215
*  Mr. Ghulam Dastagir Rajar 659,250 5.5186
   Mr. Ghulam Hyder 360,179 3.0151
   Mr. Rahim Bux 572,350 4.7911
   Mr. Mohammad Aslam 3,300 0.0276
   Mr. Qazi Shamsuddin 4,900 0.0410
   Mrs. Khanzady W/o Haji Khuda Bux 2,750 0.0230
   Associated Companies, Undertaking and
   related parties —   —   —   
   Executives 1 25,290 0.2117 
   NIT & ICP 2 1,043,516 8.7353 
*  CDC - Trustee National 
   Investment (Unit) Trust 1,043,116 8.7319
   Investment Corporation of Pakistan 400 0.0033
   Banks, DFIS, NBFIS, Mudarabas 
   and Pension Funds 4 101,550 0.8501 
   Insurance Companies 2 267,840 2.2421 
   Joint Stock Companies 10 27,423 0.2296 
* Shareholders holding 5% or more 5 4,519,235 37.8305 
   General Public - Local 1214 4,116,930 34.4629 
                         Total    1,289 11,946,000 100.000 

*  Shareholders   having   5%  or  more shares marked as(*) are shown in their relevant categories. The name wise
   details of the remaining shareholders having 5% or more given below

Name of Shareholders Number of shares held Percentage %
Mr. Ali Ghulam 858,000 7.1823 
Mr. Khuda Bux 913,000 7.6427 
Mr. Abdul Jabbar 979,000 8.1952 
Mr. Pir Baksh 1,094,485 9.1619 
Mr. Gul Mohammad 674,750 5.6483 

    4,519,235      37.8305 

Information under the Code of Corporate Governance

The Directors, Executives and their spouse and their minor children have not undertaken any trading of Company's
shares during the year ended September 30, 2018.
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